
PLANNING BOARD
Minutes & Proceedings
October 6, 2009

Page 1 of 5

Meeting called to order by Chairman Carl Stewart at 4:00PM.  Members present: Sue Roskosh, Ezekiel 
Johnson, Earl Wallace, and Anthony Harwell. Members absent: Zachary Landis, Randy Braddy, Clem 
Saccareccia and Phil Leary. Also present: Building & Zoning Department Director, Debbie Banks; 
Recording Secretary, Pam Sprouse and City Attorney, Donald Holmes.

Motion made by Sue Roskosh and seconded by Ezekiel Johnson to approve the minutes of the September 1, 
2009 meeting. All present voted affirmative, motion carried.

Debbie Banks read “To Appeal Any Decision.”

Carl Stewart requested that disclosure of any “Ex Parte Communication” be made prior to each case.

NEW BUSINESS

Case PB 08-31 Address: 5015 Crill Ave  
Parcel:   10-10-26-0000-0270-0000 (portion)
Applicant: Jacob Spells

Request: for Annexation, Future Land Use amendment from County Urban 
Reserve to City Commercial and Rezone from County Commercial (C-1) and 
Agriculture (Ag) to City Intensive Commercial (C-2).

Public Hearing

Ms. Banks advised that this case was properly advertised and notices sent to surrounding property owners 
and departmental review requests sent to all departments (included in the staff report) and that no comments 
of concern were received. She did note that the Fire Marshal stated that there was a need for a fire hydrant at 
this location and that a business inspection would be required prior to conducting business in the city.  She 
stated that it is being developed in Putnam County. The project is mostly complete and they are ready for 
utility connection. She is hoping that a certificate of occupancy will be issued prior to the City commission 
considering an ordinance for annexation. She added that there are to be 5 offices.

Mr. Spells advised that they considered annexing into the city to get utilities, and stated his appreciation of 
the Board’s consideration.

(Regular Meeting)

Mr. Harwell asked if the lot coverage met the city’s requirements.

Ms. Banks advised that this project was developed to the standards of Putnam County and that she did not 
know what those were.

Motion made by Sue Roskosh and seconded by Earl Wallace to recommend approval of the Annexation, 
Future Land Use amendment from County Urban Reserve to City Commercial and Rezone from County 
Commercial (C-1) and Agriculture (Ag) to City Intensive Commercial (C-2).  All present voted in favor, 
motion carried.



Planning Board Agenda
October 6, 2009

Page 2 of 5

Case PB 09-02 Address: 3310 Crill Ave  
Parcel:   11-10-26-0000-0100-0000
Applicant: Palatka Housing Authority
Agent: John Nelson

Request: for Annexation, Future Land Use amendment from County Urban 
Service to City High Density Residential and Rezone from County Single-family 
Residential (R-1) to City Multi-family Residential (R-3).

Ms. Banks stated that this one is a little different than what the Board normally sees because of the density
requirement. She stated that normally 9.99 units per acre is the tipping point between a small scale and a 
large scale amendment, however, there is an exemption in the Florida Statutes 163.3187(1) (f) that 
exempts small scale amendments involving the construction of affordable housing units meeting the 
criteria of Statute 420-0004(3). She stated that a land use restriction agreement must be done and would 
reflect the number of units and that the project is for “seniors-only.” She further advised that she did not 
receive any responses from the advertising or the public notices. The comments from department review 
responses were basically that they will provide additional review when the plans are submitted.

Mr. Stewart asked if the City Attorney was working on an agreement.

Ms. Banks replied that she asked Mr. Holmes to put one together and that it would need to be done before 
City Commission meeting.

Discussion continued regarding placing and recording conditions in the land use restriction agreement.

Mr. Wallace asked why this project was not being done as a Planned Unit Development (PUD).

Ms. Banks advised that a PUD was not discussed, as the applicant was not contemplating to have to vary 
from any development standards, and that with a land use restriction agreement, you can restrict what was
developed, the number of units and designate “seniors only” as well as other restrictions. She advised that 
the Board could table this request until Mr. Holmes can get the land use restriction agreement, and give 
him some ideas on what restrictions to put in place.

John Nelson, 400 N. 15th Street, stated that they have no problem with the restrictions and that this project
is being developed for 36 “senior only” housing units and it will be for seniors only. He further stated that 
they will all be one bedroom units. He believed that this was a good location for this type of development 
as it is in close proximity to doctor offices, pharmacies, shopping and other amenities.

Mr. Stewart asked how many units per acre there would be developed.

Ms. Banks advised that there are several different exemptions and classifications for Housing Authorities 
and affordable housing, allowing them to exceed the density requirement which is normally 9.99 units per 
acre, this one will be 13 units per acre.

Mr. Nelson advised that as they need far more than 36 units, to place those that have been displaced from 
the Frank George building, they are settling on the 36 units.



Planning Board Agenda
October 6, 2009

Page 3 of 5

Case PB 09-02 3310 Crill Ave - continued.

Mr. Holmes advised that the Board needs to consider land use decisions such as infrastructure, traffic, and 
the compatibility of the surrounding uses and things along that line. The Board is entitled to take into account
the senior designation because we would be considering entering into an agreement.

Mr. Nelson reiterated that the location is a great site for seniors, that amenities are close at hand, the seniors 
can walk to shop, bank, eat and doctors, unlike the Frank George apartments.

Mr. Wallace stated that he would like to see the agreement

Mr. Stewart asked Mr. Nelson if tabling this case for 30 days would hurt the project any.

Mr. Nelson stated that would of course delay the project and asked that the Board make recommendation to 
approve contingent upon the agreement being executed, with the language that meets statutory requirements, 
that it would be beneficial to all, including the families that have been without permanent housing for a long 
time and if the Board would recommend approval subject to the restriction agreement as this is a long 
process.

Mr. Harwell stated that he would rather see the restriction agreement before making a decision.

(Regular Meeting)

Motion made by Earl Wallace and seconded by Anthony Harwell to table this request until the November 3, 
2009 Planning Board meeting to be able to view the restrictions agreement. All present voted affirmative, 
motion carried.  

Case PB 09-24 Address: 6677 &6679 Crill Ave  
Parcel:   10-10-26-2100-0010-0050; 10-10-26-2100-0010-0010 & 

10-10-26-0000-0390-0010
Applicant: Rural Health Care, Inc.

Request: for Annexation, Future Land Use amendment from County Urban 
Service to City Commercial and Rezone from County Agriculture (AG) to City 
Commercial Neighborhood (C1-A).

(Public Hearing)

Mr. Wallace recused himself from this case.

Ms. Banks said this request is for utilities as they are expanding their facility and require utility services to 
this location. She advised there were no comments received from the advertisement, public notices or the 
department reviews which will continue when plans are submitted.

Juli Holmes, 256 Highway 17 N., spoke on behalf of the applicants, stating that they are in the process of 
seeking federal grant money and that this project would be 100% funded from the grant funds which should 
be awarded sometime in November.  



Planning Board Agenda
October 6, 2009

Page 4 of 5

Case PB 09-24 6677 &6679 Crill Ave – continued.

(Regular Meeting)

Motion made by Sue Roskosh and seconded by Ezekiel Johnson to recommend approval of the Annexation, 
Future Land Use amendment from County Urban Service to City Commercial and Rezone from County 
Agriculture (AG) to City Commercial Neighborhood (C1-A). All present voted affirmative, with one 
abstention. Motion carried.

Case PB 09-25 Address: 6681 Crill Ave  
Parcel:   10-10-26-0000-0390-0000
Applicant: Beck/Sloan Properties, Inc.

Request: for Annexation, Future Land Use amendment from County Urban 
Reserve to City Commercial and Rezone from County Single-family Residential   (R
-1A) and Agriculture (AG) to City Commercial Neighborhood (C1-A).

(Public Hearing)

Ms. Banks advised that this request is located directly behind and to the side of the case that was just 
considered for Rural Health Care, Inc. She stated that there were no comments or concerns received from the
advertisement or public notices and that the departmental reviews will continue once plans are submitted. 
She added that access would be from Roosevelt Avenue off of Crill Avenue.

Mr. Wallace recused himself from this case.

Juli Holmes, 256 Highway 17 N., spoke on behalf of the applicants, she stated that they are working side by 
side with Family Medical, that the space to the rear will be used for similar medical and dental type services 
and will work together to get the needed infrastructure.

(Regular Meeting)

Motion made by Sue Roskosh and seconded by Anthony Harwell to Annex, amend the Future Land Use 
from County Urban Reserve to City Commercial and Rezone from County Single-family Residential (R-1A) 
and Agriculture (AG) to City Commercial Neighborhood (C1-A). All present voted affirmative, with one 
abstention. Motion carried.

Case PB 09-26 Address: 3204 Crill Ave  
Parcel:   11-10-26-0000-0250-0000
Applicant: Putnam Center-Palatka Llc
Agent: Lynn Jackson

Request: for Conditional Use for an indoor recreational facility in a C-2 zoning 
district. 



Planning Board Agenda
October 6, 2009

Page 5 of 5

Case PB 09-26 3204 Crill Ave – continued.

(Public Hearing)

Ms. Banks advised that she did not receive any comments or concerns from the advertising, the public 
notices or from the department reviews.

Mathew Baum, 3204 Crill Avenue explained the nature of the business, explaining that the gaming is a 
promotional tool to sell their product and services that include copying, faxing, and phone cards, internet 
access and bill pay and possibly UPS shipping. With the promotional sweepstakes, they can sit at a computer
to play games or you can turn them in for money. 

Ms. Banks stated that if approval is granted, a condition of approval should be made that all city and state 
licensing be maintained.

(Regular Meeting)

Motion made by Sue Roskosh to approve the Conditional Use for an indoor recreational facility in a C-2 
zoning district with the condition that all city and state licenses be maintained, and seconded by Ezekiel 
Johnson. All present voted, motion carried.

Ms. Banks advised the Board that the 16th Street closing request will be going before the City Commission 
on October 22, 2009. She further explained that as the Planning Board has ability to make recommendation, 
she has been advised by the City Attorney the request shall automatically go to the City Commission for 
consideration whether the applicant appeals the Board’s recommendation or not, and that as this is not 
considered an appeal, new evidence and testimony may be considered by the City Commission.

Motion to adjourn made by Sue Roskosh and seconded by Anthony Harwell. All present voted affirmative, 
motion carried.


